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(MARK ONE)

x  QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES AND

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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Mississippi 64-0615843
(State or other jurisdiction of (LLR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
127 Flynt Road, Laurel, Mississippi 39443
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(601) 649-4030
(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report.)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No ~

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such

files). Yes x No ~

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or
a smaller reporting company. See definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting
company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer
Non-accelerated filer ~ (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act). Yes © No x

APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN BANKRUPTCY PROCEEDINGS

DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS:

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Sections 12,
13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed

by acourt. Yes © No

APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS:
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Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable
date. Common Stock, $1 Par Value Per Share: 23,070,832 shares outstanding as of August 21, 2014.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

SANDERSON FARMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except number of shares)

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Inventories

Deferred income taxes

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Other assets
Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Accrued income taxes

Current maturities of long-term debt
Deferred income taxes

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current maturities
Claims payable

Deferred income taxes

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders equity:

Preferred Stock:

Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, $100 par value: authorized 500,000

shares, none issued

Table of Contents

July 31,
2014
(Unaudited)

$ 139,331
115,231
217,848

0
35,842

508,252
1,131,669
(576,193)

555,476
4,727

$ 1,068,455

$ 83212
68,537
16,776
10,000

383

178,908
10,000
10,900
46,093

October 31,
2013
(Note 1)

$ 85,563
108,980
205,855

478
29,867

430,743
1,035,044
(546,578)

488,466
5,436

$ 924,645

$ 81,418
58,271
11,055
10,799

0

161,543
29,414
9,000
53,089
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Par value to be determined by the Board of Directors: authorized 4,500,000 shares;
none issued

Common Stock, $1 par value: authorized 100,000,000 shares; issued and
outstanding shares 23,071,232 and 23,016,241 at July 31, 2014 and October 31,

2013, respectively 23,071
Paid-in capital 151,284
Retained earnings 648,199
Total stockholders equity 822,554
Total liabilities and stockholders equity $ 1,068,455

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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SANDERSON FARMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
July 31, July 31,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Net sales $768,395 $738,964 $2,013,995 $1,955,919
Cost and expenses:
Cost of sales 607,003 605,018 1,675,399 1,752,118
Selling, general and administrative 45,687 29,505 99,201 69,902

652,690 634,523 1,774,600 1,822,020
Operating Income 115,705 104,441 239,395 133,899
Other income (expense):
Interest income 15 5 37 12
Interest expense (439) (1,365) (2,091) 4,977)
Other 1 17) 49 34

(423) (1,377) (2,005) (4,931)

Income before income taxes 115,282 103,064 237,390 128,968
Income tax expense 39,202 35,145 81,451 43,621
Net income $ 76,080 $ 67,919 155,939 $ 85,347
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 330 $ 295 § 676 $ 3.71
Diluted $ 330 $ 295 § 676 $ 3.71
Dividends per share $ 020 $ 017 $ 060 $ 0.51

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents 7



Edgar Filing: SANDERSON FARMS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Conten

SANDERSON FARMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

(In thousands)

Operating activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash stock compensation
Provision for losses on accounts receivable
Deferred income taxes

Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net

Income taxes

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities

Capital expenditures

Net proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Principal payments on capital lease obligations

Principal payments on long-term debt

Borrowings from revolving line of credit

Payments on revolving line of credit

Proceeds from issuance of restricted stock under stock compensation plans
Payments from issuance of common stock under stock compensation plans
Tax benefit on vesting of restricted stock grants

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Table of Contents

Nine Months Ended
July 31,
2014 2013
$ 155,939 $ 85,347
46,635 46,187
9,937 5,707
0 104
(6,135) 1,424
(6,251) (20,826)
5,721 33,365
(11,993) (5,431)
(5,908) (5,183)
(2,820) 76
12,166 15,738
41,352 71,161
197,291 156,508
(113,371) (39,728)
368 169
(113,003) (39,559)
(10,213) (563)
(10,000) (10,000)
0 15,000
0 (77,500)
680 625
(2,776) (1,756)
1,016 145
(9,227) (7,824)
(30,520) (81,873)
53,768 35,076
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Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 85,563 27,802

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 139,331 $ 62,878

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activity:
Dividends payable $ 4614 § (3912

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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SANDERSON FARMS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
July 31, 2014
NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q
and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all
adjustments consisting of normal recurring accruals considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included.
Operating results for the three and nine months ended July 31, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the results that
may be expected for the year ending October 31, 2014.

The condensed consolidated balance sheet at October 31, 2013 has been derived from the audited consolidated
financial statements at that date, but does not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. For further information, reference is made to the
consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for its
fiscal year ended October 31, 2013.

NOTE 2 INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following:

July 31, October 31,
2014 2013
(In thousands)
Live poultry-broilers and breeders $ 143,247 $ 124,260
Feed, eggs and other 36,630 34,949
Processed poultry 21,623 32,139
Prepared chicken 7,934 6,483
Packaging materials 8,414 8,024

$217,848 $ 205,855
NOTE 3 STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS
Refer to Note 9 of the Company s October 31, 2013 audited financial statements for further information on our
employee benefit plans and stock based compensation plans. Total stock based compensation expense during the three
and nine months ended July 31, 2014 was $2,820,000 and $9,937,000, respectively, as compared to total stock based
compensation expense of $3,348,000 and $5,707,000 for the three and nine months ended July 31, 2013.

During the nine months ended July 31, 2014, participants in the Company s Management Share Purchase Plan elected
to receive a total of 10,304 shares of restricted stock at an average price of $79.05 per share instead of a specified
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percentage of their cash compensation, and the Company issued 2,498 matching restricted shares. During the three
and nine months ended July 31, 2014, the Company recorded compensation cost, included in the total stock based
compensation expense above, of $51,000 and $147,000, respectively, as compared to $49,000 and $149,000 during
the three and nine months ended July 31, 2013.

On November 1, 2013, the Company entered into performance share agreements that grant certain officers and key
employees the right to receive a target number of 75,925 shares of the Company s common stock, subject to the
Company s achievement of certain performance measures. As of July 31, 2014, the Company could not determine that
any of those shares would eventually be earned due to the uncertainties discussed below. The Company also has
performance share agreements in place with certain officers and key employees that were entered into on November 1,
2012 and November 1, 2011. Each cycle of performance shares is subject to a two-year performance period and an
additional one-year service-based vesting period. As of July 2014, the aggregate number of shares estimated to be
awarded related to the November 1, 2012 performance share agreements totaled 188,298 shares. The actual number of
shares that can be awarded for those agreements could change materially from that estimate due to the Company s
actual performance during the remaining three months of the performance period ending October 31, 2014, and due to
potential forfeitures. As of July 31, 2014, the aggregate number of shares estimated to be awarded related to the
November 1, 2011 performance share agreement totaled 102,653 shares. Since the performance period for those
agreements has ended, the actual number of shares that will be awarded can change only due to potential forfeitures
during the remaining three months of the service period ending October 31, 2014. During the three and nine months
ended July 31, 2014, the Company recorded compensation expense of $393,000 and $1,134,000, included in the total
stock based compensation expense above, related to the performance share agreements entered into on November 1,
2011, as compared to $2,200,000 during the three and nine months ended July 31, 2013. During the second quarter of
fiscal 2014, the Company determined that achievement of the applicable performance based criteria for the

November 1, 2012 agreement is probable.
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Accordingly, the three and nine months ended July 31, 2014 include compensation expense of $1,070,000 and
$5,120,000, respectively, included in the total stock based compensation expense above, related to the performance
share agreements entered into on November 1, 2012. The Company recorded no compensation expense related to the
performance share agreements entered into on November 1, 2013, as it could not determine that achievement of the
applicable performance based criteria is probable. In estimating the compensation expense to record in a period, the
Company considers, among other factors, current and projected grain costs and chicken volumes and pricing, as well
as the amount of the Company s commitments to procure grain at a fixed price throughout the performance period.
Due to the high level of volatility of these commodity prices and the impact that the change in pricing can have on the
Company s results, the Company s assessment of probability can change from period to period and can result in a
significant revision to the amounts accrued related to the arrangements.

On November 1, 2013, the Company granted 75,925 shares of restricted stock to certain officers and key management
employees. The restricted stock had a grant date fair value of $65.63 per share and will vest on November 1, 2017. On
February 13, 2014, the Company granted an aggregate of 23,000 shares of restricted stock to all of its non-employee
directors. The restricted stock had a grant date fair value of $72.66 per share and vests one, two or three years from the
date of grant. The Company has unvested restricted stock grants outstanding that were granted during prior fiscal
years to its officers, key employees and outside directors. The aggregate number of shares outstanding at July 31,
2014, related to all unvested restricted stock grants totaled 567,450. During the three and nine months ended July 31,
2014, the Company recorded compensation cost, included in the total stock based compensation expense above, of
$1,306,000 and $3,536,000, respectively, related to restricted stock grants, as compared to $1,099,000 and $3,358,000
during the three and nine months ended July 31, 2013. The Company had $8.5 million in unrecognized share-based
compensation costs as of July 31, 2014, that will be recognized over a weighted average remaining vesting period of
1.5 years.

NOTE 4 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Certain share-based payment awards entitling holders to receive non-forfeitable dividends before vesting are
considered participating securities and thus are included in the calculation of basic earnings per share, to the extent
they are dilutive. These awards are included in the calculation of basic earnings per share under the two-class method.
The two-class method allocates earnings for the period between common shareholders and other security holders. The

participating awards receiving dividends are allocated the same amount of income as if they were vested shares.

The following table presents earnings per share.

For the three months ended

July 31, 2014 July 31, 2013
(in thousands except per share amounts)

Net Income $ 76,080 $ 67919
Distributed and undistributed (earnings) to
unvested restricted stock (2,056) (1,873)
Distributed and undistributed earnings to
common shareholders Basic $ 74,024 $ 66,046
Weighted average shares outstanding Basic 22,448 22,380
Weighted average shares outstanding Diluted 22,448 22,380
Earnings per common share Basic $ 3.30 $ 2.95
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Earnings per common share Diluted $ 3.30 $ 2.95

For the nine months ended

July 31, 2014 July 31, 2013
(in thousands except per share amounts)

Net Income $ 155,939 $ 85,347
Distributed and undistributed (earnings) to
unvested restricted stock (4,267) (2,445)
Distributed and undistributed earnings to
common shareholders Basic $ 151,672 $ 82,902
Weighted average shares outstanding Basic 22,437 22,356
Weighted average shares outstanding Diluted 22,437 22,356
Earnings per common share Basic $ 6.76 $ 3.71
Earnings per common share Diluted $ 6.76 $ 3.71

Table of Contents

13



Edgar Filing: SANDERSON FARMS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Conten
NOTE 5 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company holds certain items that are required to be disclosed at fair value, primarily cash equivalents
representing overnight investments and debt instruments. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. A three-level hierarchy is
followed for disclosure to show the extent and level of judgment used to estimate fair value measurements:

Level 1 Inputs used to measure fair value are unadjusted quoted prices that are available in active markets for the
identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date.

Level 2 Inputs used to measure fair value, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, are either directly or
indirectly observable as of the reporting date through correlation with market data, including quoted prices for similar
assets and liabilities in active markets and quoted prices in markets that are not active. Level 2 also includes assets and
liabilities that are valued using models or other pricing methodologies that do not require significant judgment since
the input assumptions used in the models, such as interest rates and volatility factors, are corroborated by readily
observable data from actively quoted markets for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3 Inputs used to measure fair value are unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity
and reflect the use of significant management judgment. These values are generally determined using pricing models
for which the assumptions utilize management s estimates of market participant assumptions.

At July 31, 2014, and October 31, 2013, the fair value of the Company s cash and short-term cash investments
approximated their carrying value due to the short maturity of these financial instruments and were categorized as a
Level 2 measurement. Inputs used to measure fair value were primarily recent trading prices and prevailing market
interest rates.

Fair values for debt are based on quoted market prices or published forward interest rate curves, and were categorized
as Level 2 measurements. The fair value and carrying value of the Company s borrowings under its credit facilities,
long-term debt and capital lease obligations were as follows (in millions):

July 31, 2014 October 31, 2013
Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value
Total Debt (in millions) $21.6 $ 20.0 $42.9 $ 40.2

NOTE 6 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

On September 19, 2013, the Company announced plans to invest approximately $140.0 million for construction of a
new feed mill, hatchery, poultry processing plant and waste water facility on separate sites in Palestine, Anderson
County, and Freestone County, Texas, and construction commenced in October 2013. To date, the Company has spent
approximately $62.7 million on the project, and we expect to spend the remaining $77.3 million through the first half
of fiscal 2015. Of the total $140.0 million investment, $109.7 million is budgeted for fiscal 2014, and approximately
$57.0 million, including $778,000 of capitalized interest, has been spent during the nine months ended July 31, 2014.
We expect the remaining fiscal 2014 budgeted amounts to be spent during the three months ended October 31, 2014,
which will leave approximately $24.6 million to be spent on the project in fiscal 2015. The remaining expenditures are
estimates and are subject to change as the project moves toward completion.
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The Company is involved in various claims and litigation incidental to its business. Although the outcome of these
matters cannot be determined with certainty, management, upon the advice of counsel, is of the opinion that the final
outcome should not have a material effect on the Company s consolidated results of operations or financial position.

The Company recognizes the costs of legal defense for the legal proceedings to which it is a party in the periods
incurred. After a considerable analysis of each case, the Company determines the amount of reserves required, if any.
At this time, the Company has not accrued any reserve for any of these matters. Future reserves may be required if
losses are deemed reasonably estimable and probable due to changes in the Company s assumptions, the effectiveness
of legal strategies, or other factors beyond the Company s control. Future results of operations may be materially
affected by the creation of reserves or by accruals of losses to reflect any adverse determinations in these legal
proceedings.

NOTE 7 CREDIT AGREEMENT

The Company has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility. The facility limits capital expenditures to $65.0 million
for each of fiscal years 2014 through 2018, plus, for each year, up to $10.0 million carryover from the preceding fiscal
year, when it is not actually spent in that year. The capital expenditure limitation for fiscal 2014, with the permitted
carry over, is $75.0 million. The credit facility also permits the Company to spend up to $140.0 million each in capital
expenditures on the construction of two new poultry
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complexes to be located anywhere in the United States, which expenditures are in addition to the annual capital
expenditure limits. Under the facility, the Company may not exceed a maximum debt to total capitalization ratio of
55% from the date of the agreement through October 30, 2014, and 50% thereafter. The Company has a one-time
right, at any time during the term of the agreement, to increase the maximum debt to total capitalization ratio then in
effect by 5% in connection with the construction of either of the two potential new poultry complexes for the four
fiscal quarters beginning on the first day of the fiscal quarter during which the Company gives written notice of its
intent to exercise this right. The Company has not exercised this right. The facility also sets a minimum net worth
requirement that at July 31, 2014, was $560.5 million. The credit is unsecured and, unless extended, will expire on
October 24, 2018. As of July 31 and August 22, 2014, the Company had no outstanding draws under the facility, and
had approximately $13.8 million outstanding in letters of credit, leaving $586.2 million available under the facility.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Sanderson Farms, Inc.

We have reviewed the condensed consolidated balance sheet of Sanderson Farms, Inc. and subsidiaries as of July 31,
2014, and the related condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three-month and nine-month periods
ended July 31, 2014 and 2013 and the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows for the nine-month periods
ended July 31, 2014 and 2013. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company s management.

We conducted our review in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). A review of interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and
making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an
audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole.
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the condensed
consolidated financial statements referred to above for them to be in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

We have previously audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheet of Sanderson Farms, Inc. and subsidiaries as of October 31, 2013, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders equity, and cash flows for the year then ended not
presented herein and we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements in our report
dated December 17, 2013. In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying condensed consolidated
balance sheet of Sanderson Farms, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of October 31, 2013, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the consolidated balance sheet from which it has been derived.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
New Orleans, Louisiana

August 26, 2014
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Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
General

The following Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunction with Management s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in Item 7 of the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
its fiscal year ended October 31, 2013.

This Quarterly Report, and other periodic reports filed by the Company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
and other written or oral statements made by it or on its behalf, may include forward-looking statements, which are
based on a number of assumptions about future events and are subject to various risks, uncertainties and other factors
that may cause actual results to differ materially from the views, beliefs and estimates expressed in such statements.
These risks, uncertainties and other factors include, but are not limited to the following:

(1) Changes in the market price for the Company s finished products and feed grains, both of which may fluctuate
substantially and exhibit cyclical characteristics typically associated with commodity markets.

(2) Changes in economic and business conditions, monetary and fiscal policies or the amount of growth, stagnation or
recession in the global or U.S. economies, any of which may affect the value of inventories, the collectability of
accounts receivable or the financial integrity of customers, and the ability of the end user or consumer to afford
protein.

(3) Changes in the political or economic climate, trade policies, laws and regulations or the domestic poultry industry
of countries to which the Company or other companies in the poultry industry ship product, and other changes that
might limit the Company s or the industry s access to foreign markets.

(4) Changes in laws, regulations, and other activities in government agencies and similar organizations applicable to
the Company and the poultry industry and changes in laws, regulations and other activities in government agencies
and similar organizations related to food safety.

(5) Various inventory risks due to changes in market conditions, including, but not limited to, the risk that market
values of live and processed poultry inventories might be lower than the cost of such inventories, requiring a
downward adjustment to record the value of such inventories at the lower of cost or market as required by generally
accepted accounting principles.

(6) Changes in and effects of competition, which is significant in all markets in which the Company competes, and the
effectiveness of marketing and advertising programs. The Company competes with regional and national firms, some

of which have greater financial and marketing resources than the Company.

(7) Changes in accounting policies and practices adopted voluntarily by the Company or required to be adopted by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

(8) Disease outbreaks affecting the production performance and/or marketability of the Company s poultry products, or
the contamination of its products.

(9) Changes in the availability and cost of labor and growers.
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(10) The loss of any of the Company s major customers.
(11) Inclement weather that could hurt Company flocks or otherwise adversely affect its operations, or changes in
global weather patterns that could impact the supply of feed grains.

(12) Failure to respond to changing consumer preferences.
(13) Failure to successfully and efficiently start up and run a new plant or integrate any business the Company might
acquire.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of Sanderson

Farms. Each such statement speaks only as of the day it was made. The Company undertakes no obligation to update

or to revise any forward-looking statements. The factors described above cannot be controlled by the Company. When

used in this report, the words believes , estimates , plans , expects , should , outlook ,and anticipates and simi
expressions as they relate to the Company or its management are intended to identify forward-looking statements.

Examples of forward-looking statements include statements about management s beliefs about future earnings,

production levels, grain prices, supply and demand factors and other industry conditions.

GENERAL

The Company s poultry operations are integrated through its control of all functions relative to the production of its
chicken products, including hatching egg production, hatching, feed manufacturing, raising chickens to marketable
age ( grow out ), processing, and marketing. Consistent with the poultry industry, the Company s profitability is
substantially impacted by the market prices for its finished products and feed grains, both of which may fluctuate
substantially and exhibit cyclical characteristics typically associated with commodity markets. Other costs, excluding
feed grains, related to the profitability of the Company s poultry operations, including hatching egg production,
hatching, growing, and processing cost, are responsive to efficient cost containment programs and management
practices.

11
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The Company s prepared chicken product line includes approximately 130 institutional and consumer packaged
chicken items that it sells nationally, primarily to distributors and food service establishments. A majority of the
prepared chicken items are made to the specifications of food service users.

On February 14, 2013, the Company announced the selection of sites in and near Palestine, Texas, for the construction
of its next poultry complex. Construction of the complex began on or about October 1, 2013, and initial operations are
expected to commence during the first calendar quarter of 2015. The new complex will consist of a feed mill,
hatchery, poultry processing plant and wastewater facility with the capacity to process 1.25 million chickens per week
for the big bird deboning market. Before the complex can open we will need to enter into contracts with a sufficient
number of growers and complete construction. See The construction and potential benefits of our new facilities are
subject to risks and uncertainties in the Risk Factors Section of the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for its
fiscal year ended October 31, 2013.

On October 24, 2013, the Company entered into a new revolving credit facility to, among other things, increase the
total committed credit to $600.0 million. The new facility also increases the annual capital expenditure limitation to
$65.0 million for fiscal years 2014 through 2018, plus, for each year, up to $10.0 million carryover from the preceding
fiscal year, when it is not actually spent in that year. The capital expenditure limitation for fiscal 2014, with the
permitted carry over, is $75.0 million. The new facility permits the Company to spend up to $140.0 million each in
capital expenditures on the construction of two new poultry complexes to be located anywhere in the United States,
which expenditures are in addition to the annual capital expenditure limits. Under the facility, the Company may not
exceed a maximum debt to total capitalization ratio of 55% from the date of the agreement through October 30, 2014,
and 50% thereafter. The Company has a one-time right, at any time during the term of the agreement, to increase the
maximum debt to total capitalization ratio then in effect by 5% in connection with the construction of either of the two
potential new poultry complexes for the four fiscal quarters beginning on the first day of the fiscal quarter during
which the Company gives written notice of its intent to exercise this right. The Company has not exercised this right.
The amendment also sets a minimum net worth requirement that at July 31, 2014, was $560.5 million. The credit
remains unsecured and, unless extended, will expire on October 24, 2018.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW OF RESULTS

The Company s margins improved during the third quarter of fiscal 2014 as compared to the third quarter of fiscal
2013 reflecting significantly lower grain prices and slightly higher average sales prices for poultry products. Demand
for fresh chicken in the retail grocery store market has been stable, and market prices for product sold to retail grocery
store customers are at record high levels. While traffic through food service establishments remains under pressure
due to relatively weak employment numbers and consumer confidence, market prices for boneless breast meat and
tenders sold to food service customers improved significantly during the third quarter of fiscal 2014 compared to our
second quarter of fiscal 2014. We believe this improvement is primarily driven by restricted supply of chicken and the
relatively high price of the competing proteins.

Beginning in July 2012, the Company experienced historically high prices for both corn and soybean meal due to the
impact on the quality and quantity of the 2012 corn and soybean crops of drought conditions in the Midwestern United
States. During fiscal 2013, both corn and soybean meal stabilized below the highs they set in August 2012, but
remained high relative to historical averages. While the 2013 United States corn and soybean crops were planted late
as a result of wet weather a year ago, cash market prices for both corn and soybean meal moved lower as we moved
into the harvest season during our fourth fiscal quarter of 2013 and, although soybean meal prices moved higher than
last year s prices during our third quarter of 2014, corn prices remained well below last year s prices through the first
nine months of fiscal 2014. During the third quarter of fiscal 2014, as compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2013, the
average feed cost in broiler flocks processed was 10.8% lower. The Company has priced little of its grain needs past
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August 2014. Had it priced its remaining fiscal year 2014 needs at August 21, 2014 cash market prices, its costs of
feed grains would be approximately $193.8 million lower during fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013.

While cash market prices and the Company s costs for feed grains have been and are expected to be lower during fiscal
2014 compared to fiscal 2013, soybean meal prices have moved higher compared to our third fiscal quarter of 2013 as

a result of tight soybean supplies. Favorable growing conditions in the United States have fueled optimism for robust
corn and soybean yields from the 2014 crops, and futures contracts on the Chicago Board of Trade for both corn and
soybean meal have trended lower for the balance of calendar 2014 and into 2015. If these trends continue, the
Company could experience lower grain costs for the balance of this fiscal year and fiscal 2015. However, these trends
could reverse if unfavorable weather conditions develop before harvest.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Net sales for the third quarter ended July 31, 2014 were $768.4 million as compared to $739.0 million for the third
quarter ended July 31, 2013, an increase of $29.4 million or 4.0%. Net sales of poultry products for the third quarter

ended July 31, 2014 and 2013, were $722.6 million and $712.1 million respectively, an increase of $10.5 million or
1.5%. The increase in net sales of poultry products
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resulted from a 1.3% increase in the pounds of poultry products sold, and a slight 0.2% increase in the average sales
price of poultry products sold. During the third quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company sold 780.6 million pounds of
poultry products, up from 770.8 million pounds during the third quarter of fiscal 2013. The increased pounds of
poultry products sold resulted from a 15.1 million pound decrease in finished goods inventory during the quarter. The
pounds sold from inventory were offset by a 1.7% decrease in the number of head processed, and a 0.2% decrease in
the average live weight of poultry processed. Overall, market prices for poultry products increased during the third
quarter of fiscal 2014 as compared to the same quarter of fiscal 2013. Urner Barry average market prices increased for
boneless breast meat and tenders during the third quarter of fiscal 2014 as compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2013
by 2.0% and 26.2%, respectively, while average market prices decreased for jumbo wings and bulk leg quarters during
the third quarter of fiscal 2014 as compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2013 by 10.9% and 3.7%, respectively. The
average Georgia Dock whole bird market price for the third quarter of fiscal 2014 showed improvement and increased
by approximately 5.3% over third quarter 2013 levels. Net sales of prepared chicken products for the third quarter
ended July 31, 2014 and 2013 were $45.7 million and $26.8 million, respectively, or an increase of 70.5%. This
increase resulted from a 61.6% increase in the pounds of prepared chicken products sold, and a 5.5% increase in the
average sales price of prepared chicken products sold. During the third quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company sold

21.7 million pounds of prepared chicken products, up from 13.4 million pounds during the third quarter of fiscal 2013.
The increase in the pounds of prepared chicken products sold was a result of new customers added during the current
fiscal year and, to a lesser extent, increased volume sold to existing customers.

Net sales for the first nine months of fiscal 2014 were $2,014.0 million as compared to $1,955.9 million for the first
nine months of fiscal 2013, an increase of $58.1 million, or 3.0%. Net sales of poultry products for the first nine
months of fiscal 2014 and 2013 were $1,903.9 million and $1,884.0 million, respectively, an increase of $19.9 million
or 1.1%. The increase in net sales of poultry products resulted from a 2.9% increase in the pounds of poultry products
sold, offset by a 1.8% decrease in the average sales price of poultry products sold. During the first nine months of
fiscal 2014 the Company sold 2,274.1 million pounds of poultry products, up from 2,209.4 million pounds during the
first nine months of fiscal 2013. The additional pounds of poultry products sold resulted from a 0.9% increase in the
number of head processed, a 1.3% increase in the average live weight of poultry processed, and a 26.4 million pound
decrease in finished goods inventory during the quarter. Overall, market prices for poultry products decreased during
the first nine months of fiscal 2014 as compared to the same period during fiscal 2013. Urner Barry average market
prices decreased for boneless breast meat, jumbo wings, and bulk leg quarters for the first nine months of fiscal 2014
as compared to the first nine months of fiscal 2013 by 0.4%, 28.0%, and 10.6%, respectively, while the average
market prices for tenders increased by 15.6% for the same period. The average Georgia Dock whole bird market price
for the first nine months of fiscal 2014 showed improvement when compared to the first nine months of fiscal 2013,
increasing by approximately 5.2%. Net sales of prepared chicken products for the nine months ended July 31, 2014
and 2013 were $110.1 million and $71.9 million, respectively, or an increase of 53.0%. This increase resulted from a
53.2% increase in the pounds of prepared chicken products sold, partially offset by a 0.1% decrease in the average
sales price of prepared chicken products sold. During the first nine months of fiscal 2014, the Company sold

55.0 million pounds of prepared chicken products, up from 35.9 million pounds during the first nine months of fiscal
2013.

Cost of sales for the third quarter of fiscal 2014 was $607.0 million as compared to $605.0 million during the third
quarter of fiscal 2013, an increase of $2.0 million or 0.3%. Cost of sales of poultry products sold during the third
quarter of fiscal 2014 as compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2013 was $562.5 million and $579.4 million,
respectively, a decrease of $16.9 million or 2.9%. As illustrated in the table below, the decrease in the cost of sales of
poultry products sold resulted from a 10.8% decrease in the costs of feed in broilers processed, or $0.0435 per pound,
partially offset by a 1.3% increase in the pounds of poultry products sold.

Poultry Cost of Sales

Table of Contents 22



Description

Beginning Inventory
Feed in broilers processed
All other cost of sales
Less: Ending Inventory

Total poultry cost of sales

Pounds:

Beginning Inventory
Poultry processed
Poultry sold

Ending Inventory
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(In thousands, except per pound data)

Third Quarter 2014  Third Quarter 2013 Incr/(Decr)
Dollars Per 1b. Dollars Per 1b. Dollars Per 1b.
$ 24998 $0.4419 $ 27,083 $0.4403 $ (2,085) $ 0.0016
278,179 0.3611 315,575 0.4046 (37,396) (0.0435)
280,969 0.3647 268,173 0.3438 12,796 0.0209
21,623 0.5213 31,434 0.4569 (9,811) 0.0644

$562,523  $0.7206 $579,397 $0.7517 $(16,874) $(0.0311)

56,564 61,514
770,412 779,949
780,614 770,776

41,479 68,800
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Other costs of sales of poultry products include labor, contract grower pay, packaging, freight and certain fixed costs,
among other costs. During the third quarter of fiscal 2014, other costs of sales of poultry products also include
approximately $9.2 million of charges related to the Company s bonus award program, as compared to approximately
$4.1 million during the third quarter of fiscal 2013. These non-feed related costs of poultry products sold increased by
$0.0209 per pound processed, or 6.1%, during this year s third fiscal quarter compared to the same quarter a year ago.
Excluding the effects of the bonus award program in each period, the non-feed related costs increased by $0.0142 per
pound processed, or 4.2%, year over year. Costs of sales of the Company s prepared chicken products during the third
quarter of fiscal 2014 were $44.5 million as compared to $25.6 million during the same quarter a year ago, an increase
of $18.9 million, or 73.6%, primarily attributable to a 61.6% increase in the pounds of prepared chicken sold.

Cost of sales for the nine months ended July 31, 2014 was $1,675.4 million as compared to $1,752.1 million during
the nine months ended July 31, 2013, a decrease of $76.7 million, or 4.4%. Cost of sales of poultry products sold for
the nine months ended July 31, 2014 and 2013 were $1,571.4 million and $1,684.2 million, respectively, a decrease of
$112.8 million, or approximately 6.7%. As illustrated in the table below, the decrease in the cost of sales of poultry
products sold resulted from a 18.4% decrease in the costs of feed in broilers processed, or $0.0763 per pound, partially
offset by a 2.9% increase in the pounds of poultry products sold.

Poultry Cost of Sales

(In thousands, except per pound data)

Nine months ended Nine months ended
July 31,2014 July 31, 2013 Incr/(Decr)

Description Dollars Per 1b. Dollars Per Ib. Dollars Per 1b.
Beginning Inventory $ 32,139 $04736 $ 32,196 $0.5052 $ (57) $(0.0316)
Feed in broilers processed 766,260 0.3389 920,341 0.4152 (154,081)  (0.0763)
All other cost of sales 794,598 0.3514 763,062 0.3442 31,536 0.0072
Less: Ending Inventory 21,623 0.5213 31,434 0.4569 (9,811) 0.0644
Total poultry cost of sales $1,571,374 $0.6910 $1,684,165 $0.7623 $(112,791) $(0.0713)
Pounds:
Beginning Inventory 67,859 63,729
Poultry processed 2,260,933 2,216,772
Poultry sold 2,274,066 2,209,357
Ending Inventory 41,479 68,800

Other costs of sales of poultry products include labor, contract grower pay, packaging, freight and certain fixed costs,
among other costs. During the nine months ended July 31, 2014, other costs of sales also include approximately $9.2
million of charges related to the Company s bonus award program, as compared to approximately $4.1 million during
the nine months ended July 31, 2013. Also included in these other costs of sales during the nine months ended July 31,
2014 is a loss of approximately $1.0 million incurred by the Company as a result of a fire destroying finished goods at
a third-party cold storage facility. These non-feed related costs of poultry products sold increased $0.0072 per pound
processed, or 2.1%, during the first nine months of fiscal 2014 as compared to the same period a year ago. Excluding
the effects of the bonus award program in each period, and the $1.0 million loss of finished goods during the nine
months ended July 31, 2014, the non-feed related costs increased by $0.0046 per pound processed, or 1.3%, year over
year. For the nine months ended July 31, 2014, costs of sales of the Company s prepared chicken products were $104.0
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million as compared to $68.0 million during the nine months ended July 31, 2013, an increase of $36.0 million, or
53.1%, primarily attributable to a 53.2% increase in the pounds of prepared chicken products sold.

The Company recorded the value of live broiler inventories on hand at July 31, 2014 at cost. When market conditions
are favorable, the Company values the broiler inventories on hand at cost, and accumulates costs as the birds are
grown to a marketable age subsequent to the balance sheet date. In periods where the Company estimates that the cost
to grow live birds in inventory to a marketable age, process, and distribute those birds will be higher than the
anticipated sales price, the Company will make an adjustment to lower the value of live birds in inventory to the
market value. No such charge was required at July 31, 2014 or July 31, 2013.
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Selling, general and administrative costs during the three and nine months ended July 31, 2014 were $45.7 million and

$99.2 million, respectively. The following table includes the components of selling, general and administrative costs
for the three and nine months ended July 31, 2014 and 2013.

Selling, General and Administrative Costs

(in thousands)

Three Months Nine Months
Ended July 31, Ended July 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013

ESOP expense $10,950 § 5,500 $10,950 $ 5,500
Bonus award program expense 5,926 2,255 5,926 2,255
Marketing expense 2,984 532 5,850 1,616
Stock compensation expense 2,760 3,295 9,704 5,454
Trainee expense 2,456 1,543 7,237 3,860
Start-up expense 1,886 0 3,479 0
Sanderson Farms Championship expense 1,195 982 3,585 1,390
Nash County, North Carolina expense 0 0 0 1,795
Uncollectible accounts 0 104 0 104
All other S,G & A 17,530 15,294 52,470 47,928
Total S,G & A $45,687  $29,505  $99,201  $69,902

Selling, general and administrative costs increased $16.2 million during the third quarter of fiscal 2014 as compared to
the same period a year ago. The increase resulted primarily from a $5.5 million increase in the accrual related to the
Company s Employee Stock Ownership Plan, a $3.7 million increase in the accrual related to the Company s bonus
award program, a $1.0 million increase in trainee expenses, a $2.5 million increase in marketing expenses, and a $1.9
million increase in start-up expenses related to the new Palestine, Texas complex currently under construction. The
increase in marketing expense results from the Company s decision to launch a new series of television advertisements
during 2014 to build brand recognition and loyalty, which campaign is expected to continue in fiscal 2015. The
increase in trainee expense is attributable to an increase in trainee staff.

During the first nine months of fiscal 2014, selling, general and administrative costs increased $29.3 million as
compared to the first nine months of fiscal 2013, reflecting a $4.3 million increase in stock compensation expense
attributable to the performance share awards discussed in Note 3  Stock Compensation Plans, a $2.2 million increase
in Sanderson Farms Championship expenses, and each of the individual areas discussed above, partially offset by a
$1.8 million decrease in expenses related to the previously planned construction of a new facility in Nash County,
North Carolina. The Sanderson Farms Championship is a PGA TOUR event for which the Company is committed as
the title sponsor for years 2013 through 2016. Given the Company s commitment to be the title sponsor of the
tournament over the next three years, we are committed to increasing the tournament s exposure for the benefit of the
charities it supports, as well as the Company. Accordingly, the Company incurred greater expenses related to the
tournament during the first nine months of fiscal 2014 when compared to the first nine months of fiscal 2013.
Regarding the planned construction of a new facility in Nash County, North Carolina, the Company previously
capitalized approximately $800,000 in various charges. On November 13, 2012, the Company announced that Nash
County, North Carolina, would no longer be considered as a potential site for the new facility. Accordingly, the
Company expensed the related charges in the first quarter of fiscal 2013. Additionally, upon determining that Nash
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County would no longer be considered as a potential site for the new facility, the Company chose to reimburse Nash
County and its related economic development organization approximately $1.0 million in legal fees incurred by those
entities during the planning phase of the expansion, and those fees were also expensed in the first quarter of fiscal
2013.

The Company s operating income for the three and nine months ended July 31, 2014 was $115.7 million and $239.4
million, respectively, as compared to an operating income for the three and nine months ended July 31, 2013 of
$104.4 million and $133.9 million. The increase in operating income as compared to the same period a year ago
resulted primarily from the decreased cost of feed grains during the three and nine months ended July 31, 2014.

Interest expense during the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2014 was $0.4 million and $2.1 million,
respectively, as compared to interest expense of $1.4 million and $5.0 million for the same periods in fiscal 2013. The
decrease in interest expense resulted primarily from lower outstanding debt during the first nine months of fiscal 2014
as compared to the same period in fiscal 2013. Additionally, the Company capitalized $778,000 in interest costs
related to the construction of the new complex in Palestine, Anderson County, and Freestone County, Texas during
the first nine months of fiscal 2014, $396,000 of which was capitalized during the third quarter. The Company did not
capitalize any interest cost during the first nine months of fiscal 2013.

The Company s effective tax rate for the three and nine months ended July 31, 2014 was 34.0% and 34.3%,
respectively, as compared to 34.1% and 33.8% for the three and nine months ended July 31, 2013. The Company s
effective tax rate for the nine months ended July 31, 2013 included an approximate 0.4% discrete favorable benefit
recognized in the period related to legislation enacted during the first quarter of fiscal 2013. The Company s effective
tax rate differs from the statutory federal rate due to state income taxes, certain nondeductible expenses for federal
income tax purposes and certain state and federal tax credits.

During the three and nine months ended July 31, 2014, the Company s net income was $76.1 million, or $3.30 per
share, and $155.9 million, or $6.76 per share, respectively. For the three and nine months ended July 31, 2013, the
Company s net income was $67.9 million, or $2.95 per share, and $85.3 million, or $3.71 per share, respectively.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company s working capital, calculated by subtracting current liabilities from current assets, at July 31, 2014 was
$329.3 million and its current ratio, calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities, was 2.8 to 1. The
Company s working capital and current ratio at October 31, 2013 were $269.2 million and 2.7 to 1. These measures
reflect the Company s ability to meet its short term obligations and are included here as a measure of the Company s
short term market liquidity. The Company s principal sources of liquidity during fiscal 2014 include cash on hand at
October 31, 2013, cash flows from operations, and funds available under the Company s revolving credit facility. As
described below, the Company entered into a new revolving credit facility dated October 24, 2013, to, among other
things, increase the available credit to $600.0 million from $500.0 million, and to extend the term from February 2016
to October 2018. As of July 31 and August 22, 2014, the Company had no outstanding draws under the facility and
had approximately $13.8 million outstanding in letters of credit, leaving $586.2 million available under the facility.

The Company s cash position at July 31, 2014 and October 31, 2013 consisted of $139.3 million and $85.6 million,
respectively, in cash and short-term cash investments. The Company s ability to invest cash is limited by covenants in
its revolving credit agreement to short term investments. All of the Company s cash at July 31, 2014 and October 31,
2013 was held in checking accounts and highly liquid, overnight investment accounts maintained at two banks. There
were no restrictions on the Company s access to its cash and cash investments, and such cash and cash investments
were available to the Company on demand to fund its operations.

Cash flows provided by operating activities during the nine months ended July 31, 2014 and 2013, were $197.3
million and $156.5 million, respectively. Cash flows from operating activities increased by $40.8 million, resulting
primarily from the lower costs of feed grains experienced by the Company during the first nine months of fiscal 2014,
partially offset by an increase of approximately $72.2 million in cash paid for income taxes and the payment during
the first quarter of fiscal 2014 of $21.5 million in bonuses earned under the Company s fiscal 2013 bonus award
program.

Cash flows used in investing activities during the first nine months of fiscal 2014 and 2013 were $113.0 million and
$39.6 million, respectively. The Company s capital expenditures during the first nine months of fiscal 2014 were
approximately $113.4 million, and included approximately $7.4 million for a new Company aircraft and $57.0 million
for construction of the Palestine, Texas complex. Capital expenditures for the first nine months of fiscal 2013 were
$39.7 million.

Cash flows used in financing activities during the nine months ended July 31, 2014 and 2013 were $30.5 million and
$81.9 million, respectively. During the first nine months of fiscal 2014 the Company made the third of five $10.0
million annual installments on the Farm Credit services term loan, and completed an early purchase option of an
aircraft that was previously held as a capital lease. During the first nine months of fiscal 2013, the Company made the
second of five $10.0 million annual installments on the Farm Credit services term loan. Related to its revolving credit
facility, the Company made no change to the net outstanding borrowings during the first nine months of fiscal 2014,
compared to a reduction in net outstanding borrowings of $62.5 million during the first nine months of fiscal 2013.

The Company s capital budget for fiscal 2014, excluding operating leases, is approximately $178.2 million. The 2014
capital budget will be funded by internally generated working capital, cash flows from operations and, as needed,
draws under the Company s revolving credit facility. The Company had $586.2 million available under the revolving
line of credit at July 31, 2014. The fiscal 2014 capital budget includes approximately $109.7 million for construction
of the Company s new Palestine, Texas poultry complex, and the new Company aircraft referred to above. Excluding
the budget for the new complex, the fiscal 2014 capital budget is $68.5 million.
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The Company has a Form S-3 shelf registration statement on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission to
register, for possible future sale, shares of the Company s common and/or preferred stock at an aggregate offering
price not to exceed $1.0 billion. The stock may be offered by the Company in amounts, at prices and on terms to be
determined by the board of directors if and when shares are issued.

The Company entered into the new revolving credit facility dated October 24, 2013 to, among other things, increase
the available credit to $600.0 million from $500.0 million. The new facility increases the annual capital expenditure
limitation from $55.0 million to $65.0 million for fiscal years 2014 through 2018, plus, for each year, up to $10.0
million carryover from the preceding fiscal year, when it is not actually spent in that year. The capital expenditure
limitation for fiscal 2014, with the permitted carry over, is $75.0 million. The new facility also permits the Company
to spend up to $140.0 million each in capital expenditures on the construction of two new poultry complexes to be
located anywhere in the United States, which expenditures are in addition to the annual capital expenditure limits. The
$140.0 million limit represents an increase from the $125.0 million limit available under the previous agreement.
Under the facility, the Company may not exceed a maximum debt to total capitalization ratio of 55% from the date of
the agreement through October 30, 2014, and 50% thereafter. The Company has a one-time right, at any time during
the term of the agreement, to increase the maximum debt to total capitalization ratio then in effect by 5% in
connection with the construction of either of the two potential new poultry complexes for the four fiscal quarters
beginning on the first day of the fiscal quarter during which the Company gives written notice of its intent to exercise
this right. The Company has not exercised this right. The amendment also sets a minimum net worth requirement that
at July 31, 2014 was $560.5 million.

16

Table of Contents 29



Edgar Filing: SANDERSON FARMS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Conten

The credit is unsecured and, unless extended, will expire on October 24, 2018. As of July 31 and August 22, 2014, the
Company had no outstanding draws under the facility, and had approximately $13.8 million outstanding in letters of
credit, leaving $586.2 million available under the facility.

The Company regularly evaluates both internal and external growth opportunities, including acquisition opportunities
and the possible construction of new production assets, and conducts due diligence activities in connection with such

opportunities. The cost and terms of any financing to be raised in conjunction with any growth opportunity, including
the Company s ability to raise debt or equity capital on terms and at costs satisfactory to the Company, and the effect
of such opportunities on the Company s balance sheet, are critical considerations in any such evaluation.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions, and the differences could be
material.

The Company s Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, as described in Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements that are filed with the Company s latest report on Form 10-K, should be read in conjunction with
this Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. Management believes
that the critical accounting policies and estimates that are material to the Company s Consolidated Financial
Statements are those described below.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to its customers on a short-term basis. Although credit
risks associated with our customers are considered minimal, the Company routinely reviews its accounts receivable
balances and makes provisions for probable doubtful accounts. In circumstances where management is aware of a
specific customer s inability to meet its financial obligations to the Company, a specific reserve is recorded to reduce
the receivable to the amount expected to be collected. If circumstances change (i.e., higher than expected defaults or
an unexpected material adverse change in a major customer s ability to meet its financial obligations to us), our
estimates of the recoverability of amounts due us could be reduced by a material amount, and the allowance for
doubtful accounts and related bad debt expense would increase by the same amount.

Inventories

Processed and prepared inventories and inventories of feed, eggs, medication and packaging supplies are stated at the
lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market value. When market prices for poultry are low and feed grains are
high, the Company may be required to write down the carrying values of processed poultry and live inventories to fair
market value, which would increase the Company s cost of sales.

Live poultry inventories of broilers are stated at the lower of cost or market and breeders at cost less accumulated
amortization. The cost associated with broiler inventories, consisting principally of chicks, feed, medicine and
payments to the growers who raise the chicks for us, are accumulated during the growing period. The cost associated
with breeder inventories, consisting principally of breeder chicks, feed, medicine and grower payments are
accumulated during the growing period. Capitalized breeder costs are then amortized over nine months using the
straight-line method. Mortality of broilers and breeders is charged to cost of sales as incurred. If market prices for
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chicks, feed or medicine or if grower payments increase (or decrease) during the period, the Company could have an
increase (or decrease) in the market value of its inventory as well as an increase (or decrease) in cost of sales. Should
the Company decide that the nine month amortization period used to amortize the breeder costs is no longer
appropriate as a result of operational changes, a shorter (or longer) amortization period could increase (or decrease)
the cost of sales recorded in future periods. High mortality from disease or extreme temperatures would result in
abnormal charges to cost of sales to write-down live poultry inventories.

As of July 31, 2014, the Company s inventory of live broilers was recorded at cost. Any required reserve would be
determined by comparing the accumulated cost of live poultry inventories of broilers at July 31, 2014, plus the
estimated remaining costs of their grow-out, processing, marketing and sale, to the ultimate expected sales prices of
finished products resulting from the processing of such broiler inventories. Had such estimated cost exceeded the
estimated sales price, an adjustment to record inventory at market value would have been necessary. If an adjustment
were determined to be appropriate, the value of no individual live broiler flock would be reduced by an amount greater
than its accumulated cost as of July 31, 2014. The Company used the latest available information in making these
estimates, including the expected cost of grain needed to complete the grow-out of live inventories and the expected
market prices for the finished products. However, as with any sensitive estimate, there are uncertainties inherent in
making forward-looking projections, and the Company s actual results could vary from those estimated.
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Depreciable long-lived assets are primarily comprised of buildings and machinery and equipment. Depreciation is
provided by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, which are 15 to 39 years for buildings and 3 to 12
years for machinery and equipment. An increase or decrease in the estimated useful lives would result in changes to
depreciation expense.

The Company continually evaluates the carrying value of its long-lived assets for events or changes in circumstances
that indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. As part of this evaluation, the Company estimates the
future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposal. If the sum of the expected
future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an
impairment loss is recognized to reduce the carrying value of the long-lived asset to the estimated fair value of the
asset. If the Company s assumptions with respect to the future expected cash flows associated with the use of
long-lived assets currently recorded change, then the Company s determination that no impairment charges are
necessary may change and result in the Company recording an impairment charge in a future period. The Company
did not identify any indicators of impairment during the current fiscal period.

Accrued Self Insurance

Insurance expense for workers compensation benefits and employee-related health care benefits are estimated using
historical experience and actuarial estimates. The Company accrues expenses in its workers compensation and
employee benefit plans for both known claims as well as claims incurred but not reported. Stop-loss coverage is
maintained with third party insurers to limit the Company s total exposure. Management regularly reviews the
assumptions used to recognize periodic expenses. Any resulting adjustments to accrued claims are reflected in current
operating results. There are no material adjustments to expenses accrued in prior periods in current period expenses. If
historical experience proves not to be a good indicator of future expenses, if management were to use different
actuarial assumptions, or if there is a negative trend in the Company s claims history, there could be a significant
increase or decrease in cost of sales depending on whether these expenses increased or decreased, respectively.

Performance Share Bonus Plans

The Company enters into performance share agreements that grant certain officers and key employees the right to
receive shares of the Company s common stock, subject to the Company s achievement of certain performance
measures. The performance measures in the outstanding agreements relate to the Company s average return on equity
and average return on sales over a two year performance period. There is an additional one-year service period during
which the holder must be employed by the Company to be eligible to receive the shares that met the performance
measures. The Company must estimate, at the end of each reporting period, the probability that all or some portion of
the shares will be earned at the end of the total three year vesting period. In making this estimate, the Company
considers, among other factors, the current and projected grain costs and chicken volumes and pricing, as well as the
amount of commitments to procure grain at a fixed price throughout the performance period. Due to the high level of
volatility of these commodity prices and the impact that the change in pricing can have on the Company s results, the
Company s assessment of probability can change from period to period and can result in a significant revision to the
amounts accrued related to the awards. The accounting for these awards requires the Company to accrue over the three
year vesting period the estimated amounts of the shares that will be earned with adjustments made during the service
period using the cumulative catch up method. With respect to the fiscal 2012 and 2013 awards, the Company has
accrued $9.7 million as of July 31, 2014, which is the maximum amount that could be accrued based on the Company s
determination that it is probable that the maximum amount of those outstanding awards that could be earned would be
earned at the end of the requisite periods. However, because of the volatility of the factors previously discussed, as of
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July 31, 2014, the Company was unable to determine that it was probable that awards from outstanding agreements
entered into during fiscal 2014 would be earned, and therefore it has not accrued any amount for those awards. Had
the Company determined that it was probable that the maximum amount of those outstanding awards from the fiscal
2014 agreements would be earned, an additional $2.4 million would have been accrued as of July 31, 2014.

Income Taxes

The Company determines its effective tax rate by estimating its permanent differences resulting from differing
treatment of items for financial and income tax purposes. The Company is periodically audited by taxing authorities
and considers any adjustments made as a result of the audits in considering the tax expense. Any audit adjustments
affecting permanent differences could have an impact on the Company s effective tax rate.

Contingencies

The Company recognizes the costs of legal defense for the legal proceedings to which it is a party in the periods
incurred. After a considerable analysis of each case, the Company determines the amount of reserves required, if any.
At this time, the Company has not accrued any reserve for any of these matters. Future reserves may be required if
losses are deemed reasonably estimable and probable due to changes in the Company s assumptions, the effectiveness
of legal strategies, or other factors beyond the Company s control. Future results of operations may be materially
affected by the creation of reserves or by accruals of losses to reflect any adverse determinations in these legal
proceedings.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Company is a purchaser of certain commodities, primarily corn and soybean meal, for use in manufacturing feed
for its chickens. As a result, the Company s earnings are affected by changes in the price and availability of such feed
ingredients. Feed grains are subject to volatile price changes caused by factors described below that include weather,
size of harvest, transportation and storage costs and the agricultural policies of the United States and foreign
governments. The price fluctuations of feed grains have a direct and material effect on the Company s profitability.

Generally, the Company commits to purchase feed ingredients for deferred delivery from one month to nine months
after the time of the commitment. The Company sometimes purchases its feed ingredients for prompt delivery to its
feed mills at market prices at the time of such purchases. The grain purchases are made directly with our usual grain
suppliers, which are companies in the business of regularly supplying grain to end users, and do not involve options to
purchase. Such purchases occur when senior management concludes that market factors indicate that prices at the time
the grain is needed are likely to be higher than current prices, or where, based on current and expected market prices
for the Company s poultry products, management believes it can purchase feed ingredients at prices that will allow the
Company to earn a reasonable return for its shareholders. Market factors considered by management in determining
whether or not and to what extent to commit to buy grain for deferred delivery include:

Current market prices;

Current and predicted weather patterns in the United States, South America, China and other grain producing
areas, as such weather patterns might affect the planting, growing, harvesting and yield of feed grains;

The expected size of the harvest of feed grains in the United States and other grain producing areas of the
world as reported by governmental and private sources;

Current and expected changes to the agricultural policies of the United States and foreign governments;

The relative strength of United States currency and expected changes therein as it might impact the ability of
foreign countries to buy United States feed grain commodities;

The current and expected volumes of export of feed grain commodities as reported by governmental and
private sources;

The current and expected use of available feed grains for uses other than as livestock feed grains (such as the
use of corn for the production of ethanol, which use is impacted by the price of crude oil); and

Current and expected market prices for the Company s poultry products.
The Company purchases physical grain, not financial instruments such as puts, calls or straddles that derive their value
from the value of physical grain. Thus, the Company does not use derivative financial instruments as defined in ASC
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815, Accounting for Derivatives for Instruments and Hedging Activities, or any market risk sensitive instruments of
the type contemplated by Item 305 of Regulation S-K. The Company does not enter into any derivative transactions or
purchase any grain-related contracts other than the physical grain contracts described above.

Although the Company does not use derivative financial instruments as defined in ASC 815 or purchase market risk
sensitive instruments of the type contemplated by Item 305 of Regulation S-K, the commodities that the Company

does purchase for physical delivery, primarily corn and soybean meal, are subject to price fluctuations that have a
direct and material effect on the Company s profitability as mentioned above. During the third quarter of fiscal 2014,
the Company purchased approximately 22.9 million bushels of corn and approximately 192,000 tons of soybean meal
for use in manufacturing feed for its live chickens. Thus, a $1.00 change in the average market price paid per bushel

for corn would have impacted the Company s cash outlays for corn by approximately $22.9 million in the third quarter
of fiscal 2014. Likewise, a $10.00 change in the price paid per ton for soybean meal would impact the Company s cash
outlays by approximately $1.9 million.

Although changes in the market price paid for feed grains impact cash outlays at the time the Company purchases the
grain, such changes do not immediately impact cost of sales. The cost of feed grains is recognized in cost of sales, on
a first-in-first-out basis, at the same time that the sales of the chickens that consume the feed grains are recognized.
Thus, there is a lag between the time cash is paid for feed ingredients and the time the cost of such feed ingredients is
reported in cost of goods sold. For example, corn delivered to a feedmill and paid for one week might be used to
manufacture feed the following week. However, the chickens that eat that feed might not be processed and sold for
another 48-62 days, and only at that time will the costs of the feed consumed by the chicken become included in cost
of goods sold.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company s average feed cost per pound of broilers processed totaled
$0.3611 per pound. Feed costs per pound of broilers processed consist primarily of feed grains, but also include other
feed ingredients such as vitamins, fat and mineral feed supplements. The average feed cost per pound is influenced not
only by the price of feed ingredients, but also by the efficiency with which live chickens convert feed into body
weight. Factors such as weather, poultry husbandry, quality of feed ingredients and the quality and health of the bird,
among others, affect the quantity of feed necessary to mature chickens to the target live weight and the efficiency of
that process. Generally, however, a $1.00 change in the average price paid per bushel of corn fed to a
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chicken during its life would have impacted average feed cost per pound of broilers processed by $0.0297, based on
the quantity of grain used during the third fiscal quarter of 2014. Similarly, a $10.00 change in the average price paid

per ton of soybean meal would have influenced the average feed cost per pound of broilers processed by $0.0025
during the third fiscal quarter of 2014.

The following table shows the impact of hypothetical changes in the price of corn and soybean meal on both the
Company s cash flow and cost of goods sold, based on quantities actually purchased in the third fiscal quarter of 2014:

(15,620) 45% 4%
Oklahoma 8 820,646 14,412 1,214,840 14,023 394,194 (389) 100%
South
Carolina 6 520,707 29,711 517,472 29,110 (3,235) (601) 100%
Tennessee 1 36,756 0 36,389 (367) 0 100%
Texas**** 22 1,123,383 76,168 2,367,460 144,067 1,244,077 67,899  100%
Utah 1 25,248 0 24,514 (734) 0 100%
Virginia 4 364,373 0 350,113 (14,260) 0 85%
Washington 3 41,102 0 40,806 (296) 0 66%
West
Virginia 2 41,578 0 45,352 3,774 0 43%
Wyoming 2 151,220 0 148,162 (3,058) 0 100%
U.S. Total 182 12,695,082 542,610 14,758,974 599,482 2,063,892 56,872 92 %
Non-U. S. 2 825,865 0 867,914 0 42,049 0 100%
Grand
Total 184 13,520,947 542,610 15,626,888 599,482 2,105,941 56,872
* The Company calculates its aggregate reserves for purposes of this table based on land that has been zoned for

quarrying and land for which the Company has determined zoning is not required.
**  The Company may own additional land adjacent or near existing quarries on which reserves may be located but
does not include such reserves in these calculations if zoning is required but has not been obtained.

**% The Company s reserves presented for the State of Ohio include dolomitic limestone reserves used in the
business of the Magnesia Specialties segment.

**%%* The Company s reserves presented for the States of California and Texas include limestone reserves used in the

business of the Cement segment.
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Total Annual Production (in tons) (add 000)
For year ended December 31 Number of years of production

Reportable Segment* 2014 2013 2012available at December 31, 2014
Mid-America Group 59,785 57,529 58,748 124.2
Southeast Group 18,932 17,275 18,632 185.5
West Group 62,579 53,395 49,430 84.5
Total Aggregates Business 141,296 128,199 126,810 114.8

* Prior year segment information has been reclassified to conform to the presentation of the Company s current
reportable segments.
Cement Business

As of December 31, 2014, the Company, through its subsidiaries, processed or shipped cement from 12 properties in 4
states, of which 8 are located on land owned by the Company free of major encumbrances and 4 are on leased land.
The Company s Cement business has production facilities located at two sites in Texas and one in California:
Midlothian, Texas, south of Dallas/Fort Worth; Hunter, Texas, between Austin and San Antonio; and Oro Grande,
California, near Los Angeles. The following table summarizes certain information about the Company s cement
manufacturing facilities at December 31, 2014:

Rated Annual Internally
Productive Estimated
Capacity Tons Manufacturing Minimum
Plant of Clinker Process Service Date Reserves Years
Midlothian, TX 2,200,000 Dry 2001 57
Hunter, TX 2,250,000 Dry 2013 and 1981 160
Oro Grande, CA 2,200,000 Dry 2008 59
Total 6,650,000

Reserves identified with the facilities shown above are contained on approximately 5,579 acres of land owned by the
Company. As of December 31, 2014, the Company estimated its total proven and probable limestone reserves on such
land to be approximately 933 million tons.

The Company s cement manufacturing facilities include kilns, crushers, pre-heaters/calciners, coolers, finish mills and
other equipment used to process limestone and other raw materials into cement, as well as equipment used to extract

and transport the limestone from the adjacent quarries. These cement manufacturing facilities are served by rail and
truck.
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As of December 31, 2014, the Company, through its subsidiaries, also operated 5 cement distribution terminals and 1
cement packaging facility.

Magnesia Specialties Business

The Magnesia Specialties business currently operates major manufacturing facilities in Manistee, Michigan, and
Woodville, Ohio. Both of these facilities are owned.

Other Properties

The Company s principal corporate office, which it owns, is located in Raleigh, North Carolina. The Company owns
and leases various administrative offices for its five reportable business segments.

Condition and Utilization

The Company s principal properties, which are of varying ages and are of different construction types, are believed to
be generally in good condition, are generally well maintained, and are generally suitable and adequate for the purposes
for which they are used.

During 2014, the principal properties of the Aggregates business were believed to be utilized at average productive
capacities of approximately 65% and were capable of supporting a higher level of market demand. However, during
the economic recession, the Company adjusted its production schedules to meet reduced demand for its products. For
example, the Company has reduced operating hours at a number of its facilities, closed some of its facilities, and
temporarily idled some of its facilities. In 2014, the Company s Aggregates business operated at a level significantly
below capacity, which restricted the Company s ability to capitalize $39.8 million of costs that could have been
inventoried under normal operating conditions. If demand does not improve over the near term, such reductions and
temporary idling could continue. The Company expects, however, as the economy continues to recover, it will be able
to resume production at its normalized levels and increase production again as demand for its products increases.

During 2014 the Texas cement plants were operating between 75 and 85 percent utilization and the California cement
plant was operating in the low 70s percent utilization, reflective of a slower recovery in the southern California
construction economy. The Portland Cement Association ( PCA ) anticipates California markets should reach a
demand/supply equilibrium during 2016. The Cement business leadership, in collaboration with the aggregates and
ready mixed concrete teams, have developed strategic plans regarding interplant efficiencies, as well as tactical plans
addressing plant utilization and efficiency, providing incremental supply for a sold-out Texas cement market and a
road map for significantly improved profitability for 2015 and beyond. Significant gains in plant utilization and
efficiency are typically achieved only during plant shutdowns.

During 2014, the Magnesia Specialties business was essentially running near capacity at the Manistee, Michigan,
magnesia-based chemicals plant and the Woodville, Ohio, lime plant. The Company expects future organic growth to
result from increased pricing, rationalization of the current product portfolio and/or further cost reductions. In the
current operating environment, any unplanned change in costs or customers introduces volatility to the earnings of the
Magnesia Specialties segment.
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ITEM 3.LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time claims of various types are asserted against the Company arising out of its operations in the normal
course of business, including claims relating to land use and permits, safety, health, and environmental matters (such

as noise abatement, blasting, vibrations, air emissions, and water discharges). Such matters are subject to many
uncertainties, and it is not possible to determine the probable outcome of, or the amount of liability, if any, from, these
matters. In the opinion of management of the Company (which opinion is based in part upon consideration of the
opinion of counsel), based upon currently-available facts, it is remote that the ultimate outcome of any litigation and
other proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the overall results of the Company s operations, its cash flows,
or its financial condition. However, there can be no assurance that an adverse outcome in any of such litigation would
not have a material adverse effect on the Company or its operating segments.

The Company was not required to pay any penalties in 2014 for failure to disclose certain reportable transactions
under Section 6707A of the Internal Revenue Code.

See also Note N: Commitments and Contingencies of the Notes to Financial Statements of the 2014 Financial
Statements included under Item 8 of this Form 10-K and the 2014 Annual Report and Management s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Environmental Regulation and Litigation under Item 7 of
this Form 10-K and the 2014 Annual Report.

ITEM 4.MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

The information concerning mine safety violations or other regulatory matters required by Section 1503(a) of the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and Item 104 of Regulation S-K (17 CFR 229.104) is
included in Exhibit 95 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following sets forth certain information regarding the executive officers of Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. as of
February 13, 2015:

Year Assumed Other Positions and Other Business
Name Age Present Position Present Position  Experience Within the Last Five Years
C. Howard Nye 52  Chairman of the 2014
Board;
Chief Executive 2010
Officer;
President; 2006
President of 2010
Aggregates
Business;
Chairman of 2007
Magnesia
Specialties Business
Anne H. Lloyd 53  Executive Vice 2009 Treasurer (2006-2013)
President;
Chief Financial 2005
Officer
Roselyn R. Bar 56  Senior Vice President; 2005
General Counsel; 2001
Corporate Secretary 1997
Dana F. Guzzo 49  Senior Vice President; 2011
Chief Information 2011
Officer;
Chief Accounting 2006
Officer;
Controller 2005
Donald A. McCunniff 57  Senior Vice President, 2011 Senior Vice President, Human Resources,
Human Resources CenturyLink Inc. (2009-2010)
Daniel L. Grant 60  Senior Vice President, 2013 Senior Vice President, Strategy &
Development, Lehigh Hanson, Inc., a
Strategy & producer of construction materials, and a
Development subsidiary of Heidelberg Cement

(1995-2013)
PART I1
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information, Holders, and Dividends

The Company s Common Stock, $.01 par value, is traded on the New York Stock Exchange ( NYSE ) (Symbol: MLM).

Information concerning stock prices and dividends paid is included under the caption Quarterly Performance

(Unaudited) of the 2014 Annual Report, and that information is incorporated herein by reference. There were 1,012

holders of record of the Company s Common Stock as of February 13, 2015.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Maximum Number
Total Number of of Shares that

Shares Purchased as May
Part of Yet be
Publicly Purchased
Announced Under the
Total Number of SharesAverage Price Plans or Plans or
Period Purchased Paid per Share  Programs(®) Programs
October 1, 2014
October 31, 2014 0 $ 0 5,041,871
November 1, 2014
November 30, 2014 0 $ 0 5,041,871
December 1, 2014
December 31, 2014 0 $ 0 5,041,871
Total 0 $ 0 5,041,871

(1) The Company s initial stock repurchase program, which authorized the repurchase of 2.5 million shares of
common stock, was announced in a press release dated May 6, 1994, and has been updated as appropriate. The
program does not have an expiration date. The Company announced in a press release dated February 22, 2006
that its Board of Directors had authorized the repurchase of an additional 5 million shares of common stock. The
Company announced in a press release dated August 15, 2007 that its Board of Directors had authorized the
repurchase of an additional 5 million shares of common stock. The Company announced in a press release dated
February 10, 2015 that its Board of Directors had authorized the repurchase of an additional 15 million shares of
common stock, for a total repurchase authorization of 20 million shares.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The information required in response to this Item 6 is included under the caption Five Year Summary of the 2014
Annual Report, and that information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 7.MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

The information required in response to this Item 7 is included under the caption Management s Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in the 2014 Annual Report, and that information is

incorporated herein by reference, except that the information contained under the caption Management s Discussion

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Outlook 2015 in the 2014 Annual Report is not
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incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 7A.QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The information required in response to this Item 7A is included under the caption Management s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations-Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk of the 2014 Annual Report, and that information is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 8.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required in response to this Item 8 is included under the caption Consolidated Statements of

Earnings,  Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings,  Consolidated Balance Sheets, = Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows,  Consolidated Statements of Total Equity, = Notes to Financial Statements, = Management s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and Quarterly Performance (Unaudited) of
the 2014 Annual Report, and that information is incorporated herein by reference, except that the information

contained under the caption Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations Outlook 2015 in the 2014 Annual Report is not incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A.CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of December 31, 2014, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company s management, including the Chief Executive Officer ( CEO ) and Chief Financial Officer ( CFO ), of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company s disclosure controls and procedures and the Company s
internal control over financial reporting. Based on that evaluation, the Company s management, including the CEO and
CFO, concluded that the Company s disclosure controls and procedures were effective in ensuring that all material
information required to be disclosed is made known to them in a timely manner as of December 31, 2014 and further
concluded that the Company s internal control over financial reporting was effective in providing reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Company s financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as of December 31, 2014. As permitted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, management s assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls over certain assets and the net sales of the

acquired cement and ready mixed concrete operations, which are included in the 2014 consolidated financial

statements and constituted 18% of consolidated total assets and 17% of consolidated net sales as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2014. There were no changes in the Company s internal control over financial reporting during
the most recently completed fiscal quarter that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company s internal control over financial reporting.

The foregoing evaluation of the Company s disclosure controls and procedures was based on the definition in
Exchange Act Rule 13A-15(e), which requires that disclosure controls and procedures are effectively designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed by an issuer in the reports that it files or submits with the SEC under
the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC s
rules and forms, and is accumulated and communicated to the issuer s management, including its principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.
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The Company s management, including the CEO and CFO, does not expect that the Company s control system will
prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control
system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative
to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These inherent
limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur
because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons,
by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. The design of any system of controls
also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that
any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, control may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected.

The Company s management has issued its annual statement of financial responsibility and report on the Company s
internal control over financial reporting, which included management s assessment that the Company s internal control
over financial reporting was effective at December 31, 2014. The Company s independent registered public accounting
firm has issued an attestation report that the Company s internal control over financial reporting was effective at
December 31, 2014. Management s report on the Company s internal controls and the attestation report of the
Company s independent registered public accounting firm are included in the 2014 Financial Statements, included
under Item 8 of this Form 10-K and the 2014 Annual Report. See also Management s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Internal Control and Accounting and Reporting Risk under Item 7 of
this Form 10-K and the 2014 Annual Report.

Included among the Exhibits to this Form 10-K are forms of Certifications of the Company s CEO and CFO as
required in accordance with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the Section 302 Certification ). The
Section 302 Certifications refer to this evaluation of the Company s disclosure policies and procedures and internal
control over financial reporting. The information in this section should be read in conjunction with the Section 302
Certifications for a more complete understanding of the topics presented.

PART III

ITEM 10.DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information concerning directors of the Company, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, and the Audit
Committee financial expert serving on the Audit Committee, all as required in response to this Item 10, is included

under the captions Corporate Governance Matters and Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in
the Company s definitive proxy statement to be
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filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the close of the Company s fiscal year ended
December 31, 2014 (the 2015 Proxy Statement ), and that information is hereby incorporated by reference in this Form
10-K. Information concerning executive officers of the Company required in response to this Item 10 is included in

Part I, under the heading Executive Officers of the Registrant, of this Form 10-K. The information concerning the
Company s code of ethics required in response to this Item 10 is included in Part I, under the heading Available
Information, of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 11.EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required in response to this Item 11 is included under the captions Executive Compensation,
Compensation Discussion and Analysis, = Corporate Governance Matters, = Management Development and

Compensation Committee Report, and Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation in the Company s

2015 Proxy Statement, and that information is hereby incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K.

ITEM 12.SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required in response to this Item 12 is included under the captions General Information,  Security

Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management, and Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity

Compensation Plans in the Company s 2015 Proxy Statement, and that information is hereby incorporated by reference

in this Form 10-K.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required in response to this Item 13 is included under the captions Compensation Committee

Interlocks and Insider Participation in Compensation Decisions and Corporate Governance Matters in the Company s

2015 Proxy Statement, and that information is hereby incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K.

ITEM 14.PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information required in response to this Item 14 is included under the caption Independent Auditors in the
Company s 2015 Proxy Statement, and that information is hereby incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K.
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PART IV

ITEM 15.EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) (1) List of financial statements filed as part of this Form 10-K.

The following consolidated financial statements of Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and consolidated subsidiaries,
included in the 2014 Annual Report and incorporated by reference under Item 8 of this Form 10-K:

Consolidated Statements of Earnings

for years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings
for years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
Consolidated Balance Sheets

at December 31, 2014 and 2013

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

for years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
Consolidated Statements of Total Equity

for years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012

Notes to Financial Statements

(2) List of financial statement schedules filed as part of this Form 10-K
The following financial statement schedule of Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and consolidated subsidiaries is
included in Item 15(c) of this Form 10-K.

Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable, not required, or the information has been
otherwise supplied in the financial statements or notes to the financial statements.

The report of the Company s independent registered public accounting firm with respect to the above-referenced
financial statements is included in the 2014 Annual Report, and that report is hereby incorporated by reference in this
Form 10-K. The report on the financial statement schedule and the consent of the Company s independent registered
public accounting firm are attached as Exhibit 23.01 to this Form 10-K.
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(3) Exhibits

The list of Exhibits on the accompanying Index of Exhibits included in Item 15(b) of this Form 10-K is hereby
incorporated by reference. Each management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an
exhibit is indicated by asterisks.
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(b) Index of Exhibits

Exhibit No.

3.01  Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.01 to
the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013)
(Commission File No. 1-12744))

3.02  Restated Bylaws of the Company, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.01 to the Martin
Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on November 10, 2011) (Commission File No.
1-12744)

4.01  Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.01 to the Martin Marietta
Materials, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (SEC Registration No. 33- 72648)

4.02  Articles 2 and 8 of the Company s Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.02 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1996) (Commission File No. 1-12744)

4.03  Article 1 of the Company s Restated Bylaws, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.01 to the
Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on November 10, 2011) (Commission File
No. 1-12744)

4.04 Indenture dated as of December 1, 1995 between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and First Union National
Bank of North Carolina (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
registration statement on Form S-3 (SEC Registration No. 33- 99082))

4.05 Form of Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. 7% Debenture due 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a)(i)
to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. registration statement on Form S-3 (SEC Registration No. 33-99082))

4.06  Indenture dated as of April 30, 2007 between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and Branch Banking and Trust
Company, Inc., as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on April 30, 2007 (Commission File No. 1-12744))

4.07 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 30, 2007, between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and
Branch Banking and Trust Company, Inc., as trustee, to that certain Indenture dated as of April 30, 2007
between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and Branch Banking and Trust Company, Inc., as trustee, pursuant to
which were issued $250,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 6 4% Senior Notes due 2037 of Martin
Marietta Materials, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed on April 30, 2007 (Commission File No. 1-12744))

4.08 Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 21, 2008, between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and Branch
Banking and Trust Company, Inc., as trustee, to that certain Indenture dated as of April 30, 2007 between
Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and Branch Banking and Trust Company, Inc., as trustee, pursuant to which
were issued $300,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 6.60% Senior Notes due 2018 of Martin Marietta
Materials, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report
on Form 8-K, filed on April 21, 2008 (Commission File No. 1-12744))

4.09  Rights Agreement, dated as of September 27, 2006, by and between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as Rights Agent, which includes the Form of Articles of
Amendment With Respect to the Junior Participating Class B Preferred Stock of Martin Marietta Materials,
Inc., as Exhibit A, and the Form of Rights Certificate, as Exhibit B (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of
the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on September 28, 2006) (Commission File No. 1-12744)
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4.10

4.11

4.12
4.13
4.14

10.01

10.02

10.03

10.04

10.05

10.06
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Purchase Agreement dated as of June 23, 2014 among Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, as representatives of the several initial purchasers named in
Schedule 1 thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed on June 24, 2014) (Commission File No. 1-12744)

Indenture, dated as of July 2, 2014, between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and Regions Bank, as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on July 2, 2014)
(Commission File No. 1-12744)

Form of Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2017 (included in Exhibit 4.10)
Form of 4.250% Senior Notes due 2024 (included in Exhibit 4.10)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 2, 2014, among Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., Deutsche
Bank Securities Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, as representatives of the Initial Purchasers (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on July 2, 2014) (Commission
File No. 1-12744)

$600,000,000 Credit Agreement dated as of November 29, 2013 among Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Branch Banking and
Trust Company, and SunTrust Bank, as Co-Syndication Agents (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to
the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2013) (Commission
File No. 1-12744)

Credit and Security Agreement dated as of April 19, 2013, among Martin Marietta Funding LLC, as
borrower, Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., as servicer, and SunTrust Bank, as lender together with the other
lenders from time to time party thereto, and SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent for the lenders
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on April 24, 2013) (Commission File No. 1-12744)

Commitment Letter dated as of June 20, 2014 to the Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of April 19,
2013 (as last amended April 18, 2014), among Martin Marietta Funding LLC, as borrower, Martin Marietta
Materials, Inc., as servicer, and SunTrust Bank, as lender together with the other lenders from time to time
party thereto, and SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent for the lenders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.01 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 25, 2014)
(Commission File No. 1-12744)

First Amendment dated as of June 23, 2014 to the Credit Agreement dated as of November 29, 2013, among
Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., the lenders listed therein and J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.02 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on June 25, 2014) (Commission File No. 1-12744)

Second Amendment to Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of April 18, 2014, among Martin Marietta
Funding LLC, as borrower, Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., as servicer, and SunTrust Bank, as lender together
with the other lenders from time to time party thereto, and SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent for the
lenders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.02 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on April 24, 2014) (Commission File No. 1-12744)

Fifth Amendment to Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2014, among Martin Marietta
Funding LLC, as borrower, Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., as servicer, and SunTrust Bank, as lender together
with the other lenders from time to time party thereto, and SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent for the
lenders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2014) (Commission File No. 1-12744)
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10.08

10.09

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17
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Purchase and Contribution Agreement dated as of April 19, 2013, between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., as
seller and as servicer, and Martin Marietta Funding LLC, as buyer (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.02
to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 24, 2013) (Commission File
No. 1-12744)

Form of Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Third Amended and Restated Employment Protection Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on Form
8-K, filed on August 19, 2008) (Commission File No. 1- 12744 )**

Amended and Restated Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Common Stock Purchase Plan for Directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.05 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013) (Commission File No. 1-12744)**

Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended and Restated Executive Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.05 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2008) (Commission File No. 1-12744)**

Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Incentive Stock Plan, as Amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.06
to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2008) (Commission
File No. 1-12744)**

Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended and Restated Stock-Based Award Plan dated April 3, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006) (Commission File No. 1-12744)**

Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended Omnibus Securities Award Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.16 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2000) (Commission File No. 1-12744)%**

Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Third Amended and Restated Supplemental Excess Retirement Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2012) (Commission File No. 1-12744)**

Form of Option Award Agreement under the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended and Restated
Stock-Based Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008) (Commission File No.
1-12744)%*

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended and Restated
Stock-Based Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009) (Commission File No. 1-12744)**

Form of Amendment to the Stock Unit Agreement under the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended and
Restated Stock-Based Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Martin Marietta
Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008) (Commission File
No. 1-12744)**

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement used for Directors under the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
Amended and Restated Stock-Based Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Martin
Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013)
(Commission File No. 1-12744)**
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Form of Special Restricted Stock Unit Agreement used under the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended
and Restated Stock-Based Award Plan**

*10.20 Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement used under the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended
and Restated Stock-Based Award Plan**

*12.01 Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the year ended December 31, 2014
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*13.01 Excerpts from Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. 2014 Annual Report to Shareholders, portions of which
are incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K. Those portions of the 2014 Annual Report to
Shareholders that are not incorporated by reference shall not be deemed to be filed as part of this report.

*21.01 List of subsidiaries of Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.

*23.01 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for Martin Marietta
Materials, Inc. and consolidated subsidiaries

*24.01 Powers of Attorney (included in this Form 10-K immediately following Signatures)

*31.01 Certification dated February 24, 2015 of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934, rule 13a-14, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002

*31.02 Certification dated February 24, 2015 of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Securities and Exchange Act
of 1934, rule 13a-14, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002

*32.01 Certification dated February 24, 2015 of Chief Executive Officer required by 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*32.02 Certification dated February 24, 2015 of Chief Financial Officer required by 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*95 Mine Safety Disclosure Exhibit

*101.INS XBRL Instance Document

*101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

*101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
*101.LAB ~ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
*101.PRE ~ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
*101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

Other material incorporated by reference:

Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. s 2015 Proxy Statement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A, portions of which are
incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K. Those portions of the 2015 Proxy Statement which are not incorporated
by reference shall not be deemed to be filed as part of this report.

*  Filed herewith
** Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to
Item 14(c) of Form 10-K
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(¢) Financial Statement Schedule

SCHEDULE II VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIALS, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Col A

Description

Year ended December 31, 2014

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for uncollectible notes receivable
Inventory valuation allowance

Year ended December 31, 2013

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for uncollectible notes receivable
Inventory valuation allowance

Year ended December 31, 2012

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for uncollectible notes receivable
Inventory valuation allowance

Col B Col C ColD ColE
Additions
(2)
€)) Charged
Charged to
Balance at  to costs other Balance at
beginning and accounts Deductions- end of
of period expenses describe describe period
(Amounts in Thousands)
$ 4,081 $ $ $ 4@ $ 4,077
809 1,103(b) 426(a) 1,486
99,026 11,762 9,942(¢c) 1,541(d) 119,189
$ 6,069 $ $ $ 1988) $ 4,081
440 369 809
96,817 1,165 1,044(c) 99,026
$ 5,295 $ 774 $ $ $ 6,069
295 145 440
92,481 4,475 139(d) 96,817

(a) Write off of uncollectible accounts and change in estimates.
(b) Application of reserves to acquired notes receivable.
(c) Application of reserve policy to acquired inventories.

(d) Divestitures.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIALS, INC.

By: /s/ Roselyn R. Bar
Roselyn R. Bar
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and

Corporate Secretary
Dated: February 24, 2015

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below appoints

Roselyn R. Bar and M. Guy Brooks, III, jointly and severally, as his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact, each with
full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all
capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits
thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto
said attorneys-in-fact, jointly and severally, full power and authority to do and perform each in connection therewith,
as fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that
said attorneys-in-fact, jointly and severally, or their or his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to
be done by virtue hereof.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date

/s/ C. Howard Nye Chairman of the Board, February 19,
2015

C. Howard Nye President and Chief Executive

Officer

/s/ Anne H. Lloyd Executive Vice President February 19,
2015

Anne H. Lloyd and Chief Financial Officer

/s/ Dana F. Guzzo Senior Vice President, Chief February 19,
2015

Dana F. Guzzo Information Officer, Chief

Accounting Officer,

and Controller

/s/ Sue W. Cole February 19,
Director 2015

Sue W. Cole

/s/ David G. Maffucci February 19,
Director 2015

David G. Maffucci

/s/ William E. McDonald February 19,
Director 2015
William E. McDonald

/s/ Frank H. Menaker, Jr. February 19,
Director 2015
Frank H. Menaker, Jr.

/s/ Laree E. Perez February 19,
Director 2015
Laree E. Perez

/s/ Michael J. Quillen February 19,
Director 2015
Michael J. Quillen
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/s/ Dennis L. Rediker

Dennis L. Rediker

/s/ Richard A. Vinroot

Richard A. Vinroot

/s/ Stephen P. Zelnak, Jr.

Stephen P. Zelnak, Jr.
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EXHIBITS

Exhibit

No.

3.01 Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.01
to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2013) (Commission File No. 1-12744)

3.02 Restated Bylaws of the Company, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.01 to the Martin
Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report) on Form 8-K, filed on November 10, 2011) (Commission File No.
1-12744)

4.01 Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.01 to the Martin Marietta
Materials, Inc. registration statement on Form S-1 (SEC Registration No. 33-72648))

4.02 Articles 2 and 8 of the Company s Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.02 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1996) (Commission File No. 1-12744)

4.03 Article 1 of the Company s Restated Bylaws, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.01 to the
Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on November 10, 2011) (Commission
File No. 1-12744)

4.04 Indenture dated as of December 1, 1995 between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and First Union National
Bank of North Carolina (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
registration statement on Form S-3 (SEC Registration No. 33-99082))

4.05 Form of Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. 7% Debenture due 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4(a)(i) to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. registration statement on Form S-3 (SEC Registration No.
33-99082))

4.06 Indenture dated as of April 30, 2007 between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and Branch Banking and Trust
Company, Inc., as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on April 30, 2007 (Commission File No. 1-12744))

4.07 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 30, 2007, between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and

Branch Banking and Trust Company, Inc., as trustee, to that certain Indenture dated as of April 30, 2007
between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and Branch Banking and Trust Company, Inc., as trustee, pursuant
to which were issued $250,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 6 !,% Senior Notes due 2037 of Martin
Marietta Materials, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on April 30, 2007 (Commission File No. 1-12744))

4.08 Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 21, 2008, between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and
Branch Banking and Trust Company, Inc., as trustee, to that certain Indenture dated as of April 30, 2007
between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and Branch Banking and Trust Company, Inc., as trustee, pursuant
to which were issued $300,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 6.60% Senior Notes due 2018 of Martin
Marietta Materials, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on April 21, 2008 (Commission File No. 1-12744))

4.09 Rights Agreement, dated as of September 27, 2006, by and between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as Rights Agent, which includes the Form of Articles of
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and the Form of Rights Certificate, as Exhibit B (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on September 28, 2006) (Commission File No. 1-12744)

Purchase Agreement dated as of June 23, 2014 among Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, as representatives of the several initial purchasers named in
Schedule 1 thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed on June 24, 2014) (Commission File No. 1-12744)

Indenture, dated as of July 2, 2014, between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and Regions Bank, as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on July 2, 2014)
(Commission File No. 1-12744)

Form of Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2017 (included in Exhibit 4.10)
Form of 4.250% Senior Notes due 2024 (included in Exhibit 4.10)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 2, 2014, among Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., Deutsche
Bank Securities Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, as representatives of the Initial Purchasers (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on July 2, 2014) (Commission
File No. 1-12744)

$600,000,000 Credit Agreement dated as of November 29, 2013 among Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Branch Banking and
Trust Company, and SunTrust Bank, as Co- Syndication Agents (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01
to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2013) (Commission
File No. 1-12744)

Credit and Security Agreement dated as of April 19, 2013, among Martin Marietta Funding LLC, as
borrower, Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., as servicer, and SunTrust Bank, as lender together with the other
lenders from time to time party thereto, and SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent for the lenders
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on April 24, 2013) (Commission File No. 1-12744)

Commitment Letter dated as of June 20, 2014 to the Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of April 19,
2013 (as last amended April 18, 2014), among Martin Marietta Funding LLC, as borrower, Martin Marietta
Materials, Inc., as servicer, and SunTrust Bank, as lender together with the other lenders from time to time
party thereto, and SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent for the lenders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.01 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 25, 2014)
(Commission File No. 1-12744)

First Amendment dated as of June 23, 2014 to the Credit Agreement dated as of November 29, 2013, among
Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., the lenders listed therein and J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.02 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on June 25, 2014) (Commission File No. 1-12744)

Second Amendment to Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of April 18, 2014, among Martin Marietta
Funding LLC, as borrower, Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., as servicer, and SunTrust Bank, as lender together
with the other lenders from time to time party thereto, and SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent for the
lenders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.02 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on April 24, 2014) (Commission File No. 1-12744)

Fifth Amendment to Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2014, among Martin Marietta
Funding LLC, as borrower, Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., as servicer, and SunTrust Bank, as lender together
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time party thereto, and SunTrust Bank, as administrative agent for the lenders (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.01 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2014)
(Commission File No. 1-12744)

Purchase and Contribution Agreement dated as of April 19, 2013, between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., as
seller and as servicer, and Martin Marietta Funding LLC, as buyer (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.02
to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 24, 2013) (Commission File
No. 1-12744)

Form of Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Third Amended and Restated Employment Protection Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Current Report on Form
8-K, filed on August 19, 2008) (Commission File No. 1-12744)**

Amended and Restated Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Common Stock Purchase Plan for Directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.05 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013) (Commission File No. 1-12744)%*

Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended and Restated Executive Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.05 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2008) (Commission File No. 1-12744)**

Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Incentive Stock Plan, as Amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.06
to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2008) (Commission File No. 1-12744)**

Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended and Restated Stock-Based Award Plan dated April 3, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006) (Commission File No. 1-12744)*%*

Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended Omnibus Securities Award Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.16 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2000) (Commission File No. 1- 12744)%**

Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Third Amended and Restated Supplemental Excess Retirement Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2012) (Commission File No. 1-12744)**

Form of Option Award Agreement under the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended and Restated
Stock-Based Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008) (Commission File No.
1-12744)%**

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended and Restated
Stock-Based Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.01 to the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009) (Commission File No. 1-12744)%%*

Form of Amendment to the Stock Unit Agreement under the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. Amended and
Restated Stock-Based Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Martin Marietta
Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008) (Commission File
No. 1-12744)**

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement used for Directors under the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
Amended and Restated Stock-Based Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Martin
Marietta Materials, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013)
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*10.19

*10.20

*12.01

*13.01

*21.01

*23.01

*24.01
*31.01

*31.02

*32.01

*32.02

*95
*101.INS
*101.SCH
*101.CAL
*101.LAB
*101.PRE
*101.DEF

Form of Special Restricted Stock Unit Agreement used under the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
Amended and Restated Stock-Based Award Plan**

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement used under the Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.
Amended and Restated Stock-Based Award Plan**

Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the year ended December 31, 2014

Excerpts from Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. 2014 Annual Report to Shareholders, portions of which
are incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K. Those portions of the 2014 Annual Report to
Shareholders that are not incorporated by reference shall not be deemed to be filed as part of this report.

List of subsidiaries of Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for Martin Marietta
Materials, Inc. and consolidated subsidiaries

Powers of Attorney (included in this Form 10-K immediately following Signatures)

Certification dated February 24, 2015 of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934, rule 13a-14, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification dated February 24, 2015 of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Securities and Exchange Act
of 1934, rule 13a-14, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification dated February 24, 2015 of Chief Executive Officer required by 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification dated February 24, 2015 of Chief Financial Officer required by 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Mine Safety Disclosure Exhibit

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase

Other material incorporated by reference:

Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. s 2015 Proxy Statement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A, portions of which are
incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K. Those portions of the 2015 Proxy Statement which are not incorporated
by reference shall not be deemed to be filed as part of this report.

*  Filed herewith
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